
Oregon Workforce Investment Board Minutes 
Salem, Chemeketa Center for Business and Industry 
January 3, 2014 

Attendees: 

Members:  Agnes Balassa, Susan Brown, Barbara Byrd, Sen. Michael Dembrow, Maureen Fallt, Jesse 
Gamez,  Jessica Gomez, Gerald Hamilton, Megan Helzerman (via phone), Rep. John Huffman, Dacia 
Johnson, Lori Luchak ,Ken Madden, Lisa Nisenfeld , Rosie Pryor, Marvin Revoal, Cheryl Roberts (via 
phone), Barbara Rodriguez, Stephaine Taylor,  Alan Unger, Frank Wall. 

Guests: Kim Parker, Jordana Barclay, Jim Pfarrer, Tom Previs, Pamela Murray, Melissa Leoni, Karen 
Humelbaugh, Robert Brown, Jim Fong, Clay Martin, Tim McGann, Tony Frazier, Shaun Jillions, John 
Wykoff, Mary Spilde, Paul Hill, Katherine Bartlett, Wayne Fanno, Cathy Wilkns, Jessica Howard, Tom 
Erhardt, Kristin Kahler-Jones, Molly Young, Kim Freeman. 

 Staff:  Tracy O’Brien 

Absent:  Erinn Kelley-Siel, Karen Goddin, Claire Spanbock, Dave Baker, Laura McKinney, Sen. Diane 
Rosenbaum, Art Paz, Joe Webber, Kate Wilkinson, Sen. Larry George. 
             

Meeting called to order at 1:06 p.m. 

Board Chair Pryor called the meeting to order. OWIB members and guests provided introductions. 
O'Brien reviewed meeting agenda and attachments for the meeting.  

Public Comment 

Tony Frazier spoke on behalf of the Oregon Workforce Partnership. He stated that the work group 
recommendations best achieve the outcomes desired by the Governor, as they address inefficiencies in 
the current system and provide greater accountability. A more streamlined system helps all partners, 
and allows LWIBs to focus on serving customers.  Regardless of state structures, LWIBs will continue to 
work with community college partners on enhancing collaboration serves to advance the state’s 40-40-
20 goals. Frazier noted that, though all stakeholders did not get everything wanted, the 
recommendations represent a significant step forward. 

Cathy Wilkins, President of Oregon Employer Council (OEC), said she would like to find a greater 
partnership with OWIB because OEC is the voice of business. She expressed concerns that shifting SEDAF 
funding will create a loss of connection between job seekers and what businesses fundamentally need. 
She stated that businesses need the system to focus on the middle 40, the area that affects them most. 
She does not want to lose the voice of business that is in the Oregon Employer Council. 

John Wykoff, Legislative Director for the Oregon Community College Association (OCCA), expressed 
concerns about the redesign process. He stated that the community colleges were not adequately 

 
January 3, 2014 OWIB Minutes  1    
 



engaged, and that OCCA believes the changes recommended to Title 1B will have profound 
consequences to CCWD and the ability to align workforce and education. He asked for OWIB and HECC 
to be jointly engaged in discussion on what should be common metrics. OCCA opposes moving Title IB in 
the 2014 short session because of what they believe will be negative consequences to CCWD, and the 
claims of efficiencies are not fully explained. He noted OCCA agrees on probably 19 of the 20 other 
recommendations in the consultants' report. 

Consent Agenda 

Madden moved to approve the consent agenda, Unger seconded, motion passed unanimously. 

 Governor Kitzhaber’s statement 

Balassa read a letter from Governor Kitzhaber to the OWIB. He was originally slated to attend the 
December OWIB meeting, prior to its cancellation. His letter expressed thanks to the OWIB for the work 
they have done around strategic planning and initiating system redesign. The Governor thanked Chair 
Pryor for her leadership during this process, and asked Ken Madden to serve as new Chair and Jessica 
Gomez as Vice Chair. The letter encouraged the OWIB to move forward, as status quo for the workforce 
system is not an option. 

Rechartering Criteria for OWIB and LWIBs 

Balassa stated that, as part of the Executive Order, there was to be a set of criteria for rechartering 
OWIB and LWIBs by December 31, 2013. Due to cancellation of the December OWIB meeting, this action 
item was being addressed in this meeting. Balassa highlighted pages 19-24 of the Board packet, which 
outlined the functions which OWIB and LWIBs will be chartered to provide, alongside the criteria to be 
met by June 30, 2015. This has been previously discussed at the November OWIB meeting. Nisenfeld 
asked to correct the dates on the tables from 2105 to 2015. The OWIB will have a role in determining if 
LWIB criteria have been met, and the Governor will determine if the OWIB meets criteria. Revoal asked 
if LWIBs are aware OWIB will be determining if they meet the criteria. Balassa responded that they are 
aware. 

Madden moved that the OWIB recommend that the Governor adopt the OWIB and LWIB rechartering 
criteria, Luchak seconded, motion passed unanimously.  

Workforce System Redesign Work Group Recommendations 

O’Brien reminded the Board about the extensive presentation during the November meeting regarding 
the work group recommendations, and that the Board had asked for additional information. Specific 
questions were raised if the recommendation to move Title 1B was not approved, could the other 
recommendations proceed. Balassa discussed the timeline of OWIB recommendations in context of 
upcoming legislation. She acknowledged it was awkward to begin drafting legislation prior to the OWIB 
vote, but due to the December meeting cancellation, it was important to have the agencies begin 
developing contingencies and not wait until the January OWIB meeting. 

 
January 3, 2014 OWIB Minutes  2    
 



Nisenfeld presented a graphic of the workforce system current state, reminding the Board that the 
initial recommendation was to move WIA Title 1B from being administered by CCWD to OED. She noted 
the funds would still go directly to LWIBs, who are responsible for local administration and services. 
Balassa added that one of the challenges of this current governance structure, from the Governor’s 
Office perspective, is that one agency (CCWD) has two governing Boards – HECC and OWIB while OED 
does not have any direct connection to the OWIB or the LWIBs in terms of governance.  This is 
problematic, because the resources to get the unemployed back to work are primarily in OED. At the 
local level, workforce funds from both OED and CCWD are delivered jointly at WorkSource. She noted 
one of the intent of system redesign is to align governance that allows OWIB to play its appropriate role 
for the larger workforce system that includes OED, while addressing that fact that CCWD currently 
answers to two masters. 

Nisenfeld continued with the workforce system Future State graphic. She noted the OED Advisory 
Committee oversees the Unemployment Insurance system. This will continue, but will be better 
connected to OWIB. Nisenfeld noted, in response to earlier public comment, that OED is not 
contemplating any change in administration of SEDAF funds. 

The work group responded to the prior OWIB meeting question regarding whether Recommendation #6 
(Redesign the Oregon Employment Department as Oregon’s lead agency for workforce programs, 
including the relocation of the state level WIA Title I-B and Oregon Youth Conservation Corps programs 
to OED) was severable from the other recommendations. The work group has determined this is 
possible in the short term and would allow the work group to spend the coming year developing  a way 
to manage the issues of the movement of the Title 1B funds without adversely affecting CCWD. This 
discussion would occur between agencies, governor, and others to develop a scenario that works for all 
stakeholders.  

The workgroup combined its list of 15 recommendations into six categories. OED will work cooperatively 
with CCWD to staff OWIB in the coming year, so OWIB has jurisdiction over a more transparent 
Employment Department. The discussion of administration of WIA will be moved to 2015 full session. 
Hamilton added this additional time helps CCWD, and urged the OWIB to recognize that workforce is a 
huge part of the colleges’ mission. 

Nisenfeld called out #5 of the Memo on page 67 that calls for creation of an innovation fund and 
function at OED and noted OED is looking to identify resources to seed this fund. Nisenfeld stated 
partners are on the same page with what all are trying to accomplish, they just need to work through it 
together. Revoal asked if there is an understanding that The Title 1B fund transfer to OED was still in the 
works.  Balassa responded yes.  

Balassa concluded that the intent for 2014 legislation is to move forward on most pieces, primarily 
around governance. The goal between now and 2015 is to solidify the plan for Title 1B proposal the 
future of CCWD, and the structure of the Higher Education Coordinating Commission.  It will be helpful 
to do this all as one package.  Gomez asked if there will be a gap in funding at CCWD when Title 1B 
moves. Balassa noted that movement of funds could not happen until 2015 due to budgeting timelines.  

 
January 3, 2014 OWIB Minutes  3    
 



Balassa acknowledges that CCWD could face a funding and staffing gap if the situation was not handled 
carefully. 

 Rep. Huffman asked if this change means the timeline around potentially redistricting workforce 
investment area would move forward, as he suggested efficiencies could be gained by this. Balassa 
clarified that the LWIA areas are designated by the Governor and are not included in these 
recommendations. However, LWIB boundary discussions could be addressed sooner, in light of the 
delayed movement of the Title 1B program. She noted the locals have concerns about redistricting, but 
they need the clarity in order to achieve their strategic plans.  

Rep Huffman asked if there has been time to fully explore the criticism that efficiencies have not been 
identified from the system redesign. Balassa noted that LWIBs have provided testimony regarding 
concerns about receiving multiple points of guidance, and lack of clarity on whether state agencies are 
also required to follow this guidance, wasting energy, time and resources that could go into service 
delivery. This is one point of efficiency that would be gained. In addition, having Title 1B and OED 
working together at the state level could create more opportunities to get people back to work faster, 
creating efficiencies in the use of the more than $1 billion in UI funds. Nisenfeld also noted that OED is 
looking throughout the agency for efficiencies in general, regardless of what does or does not occur with 
larger system changes. Beginning in March, OED and LWIBs will be convening meetings with 
stakeholders to talk about what each part of state needs most to better deliver services. Efficiencies will 
become more apparent as this conversation is further explored. Balassa also reminded the board that it 
had tasked the workforce system with the development of an efficiency measure which has not yet 
been developed.  This will provide a consistent way to gauge efficiencies in the future. 

Rep. Huffman remembered a Kulongoski proposal to divert funds from UI Trust Funds, and inquired if 
anything similar was being pursued. Balassa said there is no such proposal from the Governor’s office 
and reminded the Board that SEDAF is the only currently sanctioned diversion. The SEDAF fund will not 
be moving, but the question is around how it can best be utilized. Rep Huffman expressed support to 
moving the Title 1B discussion to 2015, as it gives necessary time to build community college budget and 
fill the possible vacuum. Rep. Huffman inquired to Hamilton if he was comfortable with the revised 
timeline. Hamilton responded that more time is better, and the question is how community colleges get 
incorporated inside the umbrella of HECC.  

Gomez said that it seemed like moving WIA funds created more efficiency in the way funds flowed, so if 
that move is delayed, how does that affect our progress? Balassa responded the decision could have 
been made in 2014 session, but the actual move would not have occurred until 2015 regardless. But, 
since many legislators were clear that they would not support the movement of Title 1B funds in 2014, 
there was no choice but to wait, regardless of the potential impact on efficiencies. 

Gamez asked if moving the money means services are going to be disrupted and wonders if the change 
is an additive rather than efficiency? OWIB’s interest is making sure there are services to the 
unemployed. 

 
January 3, 2014 OWIB Minutes  4    
 



Sen. Dembrow stated his appreciation for the direction the OWIB is headed, and feels it would have 
been premature to move forward at this point. He identified two potential problems with moving Title 
1B at this point – how to mitigate any negative effects within CCWD, and that it could move us further 
away from focus on the middle 40. He said as new budgets are prepared decisions can be made that can 
address both of these areas. He asked that OWIB focus on discussing the 40-40-20 goals, and it should 
coincide with the HECC’s work.  There is still work to be done in identifying greater efficiencies in moving 
over to OED, and the Legislature will want to see more concrete examples of where inefficiencies are 
now and how it hurts people's ability to find jobs. 

Balassa drew attention to the fact that the Memo from the Agency Directors also focused on serving 
those with barriers to employment. This redesign is intended to help all those who want to work, 
including those with severe barriers to employment. She pointed out that the agencies had not lost 
track of this conversation in their recommendations. 

Madden moved that the OWIB recommend to the Governor that the following work already in progress 
continue (all together): 

• Recommendation #1:  Direct an interagency workgroup to develop a system-wide, state-level 
balanced score card by June 2014. 

• Recommendation #2: In partnership with Local Workforce Boards, create a process to cascade 
state-level metrics to the local level so that local boards can monitor performance and prioritize 
strategies and resources to maximize results for job seekers. 

• Recommendation #10: Strengthen the role of the LWIBs by entering into charters that clearly 
spell out the roles and responsibilities of the LWIB as well as the commitments of state agencies 
and the OWIB in supporting the LWIBs. 

• Recommendation #11: Direct the LWIBs and workforce agencies to enter into performance 
compacts to clarify the performance expectations of the LWIBs and the programs in their 
communities. 

Revoal seconded, motion passed unanimously. 

Madden moved that the OWIB make the following recommendations to the Governor related to 
workforce and employment related services for persons with disabilities, persons living at or below the 
poverty line and the chronically unemployed and underemployed: 

• Recommendation #3: Convene workforce system partners to conduct a system-wide review of 
existing workforce and employment related programs, services and policies for persons with 
disabilities, persons living at or below the poverty line and chronically unemployed and 
underemployed. 

• Recommendation #4: Direct the workforce system partners to develop a statewide workforce 
policy for persons with disabilities, persons living at or below the poverty line and the 
chronically unemployed and underemployed that establishes goals for improved workforce 
services. 

 
January 3, 2014 OWIB Minutes  5    
 



• Recommendation #5: Direct the workforce system agencies to submit a biennial report to the 
Governor charting the progress in achieving outcomes for persons with disabilities, persons 
living at or below the poverty line and the chronically unemployed and underemployed as well 
as documenting special initiatives and efforts to implement best practices. 

Gomez seconded, motion passed unanimously. 

Chair Pryor invited members of Board to provide thoughts on Recommendation #6 - redesign the 
Oregon Employment Department as Oregon’s lead agency for workforce programs, including the 
relocation of WIA Title I-B and the Oregon Youth Conservation Corps programs to OED. Brown 
appreciated the clarification provided at the November meeting about system resources and the OWIB 
role. Luchak said she was comfortable with postponing the discussion of moving Title IB, but was 
anxious to move forward. Fallt stated that from a change management perspective, delaying the move 
addresses the need to give people time to process change. Rodriguez agreed it made sense to postpone 
Recommendation #6 to get more clarity. Unger has concerns that delaying this means the process will 
inevitably take forever, and urges the group to move forward. Byrd noted she was relieved to postpone 
Recommendation #6, as those she represents who teach at community colleges are confused by the 
suggested changes. She also wanted it noted that the workforce training definition should be expanded 
beyond purview of community colleges, as apprenticeship is also a key workforce training program. Wall 
reiterated Byrd’s support for apprenticeship. He expressed concern that a delay in decision means OWIB 
is not focusing on our mission. He wondered what the consequences are that the community colleges 
refer to, and how this affects OWIB’s mission. 

Roberts said that community colleges are the link between workforce and business, and wants to make 
sure that both OEIB and HECC have robust conversation about shared space. Gomez stated the 
importance in getting redesign done correctly, but hopes the focus will be on creating a system that is 
effective. Madden said this is an opportunity to promote dialogue and hopes to work through the 
community colleges’ concerns. Gamez appreciates taking all stakeholders into account so we do not 
have to backtrack. Sen. Dembrow agreed with previous statements that the role of apprenticeships in 
workforce development should be a focus, and noted there will be upcoming Legislation that clarifies 
that trade apprenticeship is part of “middle 40”.  

Rep. Huffman thanked Balassa for her work in the redesign effort. He concurred that there should be 
value on all workforce training-apprenticeships, community college training, and other training but to 
address chronically underemployed  issues he believes the  Governor needs to ask all workforce 
partners to work together and collaborate. Johnson also thanked Balassa for navigating this change, and 
reiterated support for serving populations with barriers to employment. Taylor expressed support for 
the innovation fund, stating that all will benefit when we are able to leverage resources and support 
those who have not always been assisted. Revoal stated he wants to see legislature support these 
programs with funding.  

 
January 3, 2014 OWIB Minutes  6    
 



Chair Pryor reminded the Board there was no motion on floor. She requested, by show of hands, who 
would support taking another year to work out issues around Recommendation #6.  The majority raised 
their hand. She stated that she was satisfied with this response and did not request a formal motion. 

Madden moved that the OWIB make the following recommendations to the Governor to enhance the 
role of the Oregon Workforce Investment Board regarding workforce development: 

• Recommendation #7: Enhance the role of the OWIB within the workforce system, including 
making it the advisory committee to a newly redefined Oregon Employment Department, 
through legislation in the 2014 Legislative Session. 

• Recommendation #8: Dedicate professional staff for the OWIB located at OED. 
• Recommendation #9: Establish clear collaborative relationships with the other state advisory 

bodies whose missions include workforce development. 

Gomez seconded, motion passed unanimously. 

Madden moved that the OWIB make the following recommendation to the Governor: 

• Recommendation #12: Approve a dispute resolution process to resolve disagreements between 
state agencies and the LWIBs. 

Wall seconded, motion passed unanimously. 

Madden moved that the OWIB make the following recommendations to the Governor to enhance 
support for service delivery: 

• Recommendation #13: Create a workforce system innovation and capacity building function 
within the redesigned OED. 

• Recommendation #14: Develop and integrate information systems to ensure that the state 
agencies have the tools necessary for service delivery. 

• Recommendation #15: Challenge state agencies and LWIBs to find local opportunities to pilot 
new models of service delivery across workforce system programs. 

Byrd inquired how Recommendation #13 could occur, since OED will not necessarily to be redesigned. 
Balassa responded that, with or without Title 1B funds, OED can fund the innovation capacity. Byrd 
requested that "redesigned" be struck from recommendation #13. Unger seconded, motion passed 
unanimously. Chair Pryor noted that 14 recommendations will be forwarded to Governor on workforce 
system redesign. 

OWIB Year in Review 

O’Brien provided a 2013 OWIB Year in Review. Accomplishments included submission of HB 4141 Report 
to the Legislation, undertaking system innovation efforts, holding two statewide industry sector strategy 
events, and aligning the NCRC and CWRC Sub-Committees. 

 
January 3, 2014 OWIB Minutes  7    
 



Unemployment Insurance Update 

Nisenfeld noted that generally, UI would not be discussed at OWIB, but she wanted to start preparing 
the board for the role they would play in the future related to UI. She said this is also a way for the OWIB 
to get a broader view of the system. Nisenfeld shared that the federal UI extension program has expired; 
leaving 17,800 Oregonians who have exhausted UI benefits without federally funded extended benefits. 
OED has received a Legislative inquiry on what it would take to run a state funded UI extension, funded 
from the UI trust fund. She noted OED is not recommending one way or another, as that is the role of 
the Legislature. It would cost approximately $30 million to fund an additional 4-6 weeks of extension for 
about 22,000 people. They will have to wait to see if Federal government renews an extension first. This 
issue will be further discussed at February OWIB meeting. 

Balassa noted OWIB has not discussed UI frequently, but inquired if the Board was interested in better 
understanding this component of the system. Nisenfeld said the challenge is to connect the UI system 
with training/workforce development system, and she would like the OWIB to understand these issues 
as part of a system, rather than a collection of programs. Members agreed it was important for them to 
learn more about UI, and expressed support for further information to be shared at future OWIB 
meetings. 

 

 

Chair Pryor Remarks 

Chair Pryor noted O’Brien had accepted another position and would no longer be staffing OWIB. She 
thanked her for her work. Chair Pryor congratulated Madden on his new role as Chair and presented the 
Chair gavel to him. 

Meeting adjourned at 3:08 pm. 

 

 
January 3, 2014 OWIB Minutes  8    
 


